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The Eddie Mahe Company
Suite 200

900 Second Street, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20001

03A13234

Complainant,

wr 3954
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Al Brown for Congress Committee
305 W. Broadway, Suite 400
Louisville, KY 40202,

Respondents.

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

LADONNA Y. LEE, being first duly cautioned and sworn, submits
this complaint against The Al Brown Committee ("Respondent
Committee") on behalf of the Eddie Mahe Company ("Complainant"),

pursuant to 2 U.S.C. §437g(a) (1), and states as follows:
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1. I am President of the Eddie Mahe Company, a corporation

)

doing business in the District of Columbia. 1In that capacity, I

am responsible for the company's records, including bills and

2. The Respondent Committee was a client of the Eddie Mahe

Company, and owes the Eddie Mahe Company for services rendered to
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it in 1990. on Complainant's information and belief, Al Brown
("Brown") guaranteed payment of Respondent Committee's debts to
Complainant; Brown disputes the guarantee. The account is in
arrears in the amount of $51,654.40, as of November 7, 1991 (the
"Debt")., This sum includes a fee amount of $37,500.00 for the
services rendered an expense amount of $2,298.89, and interest on
the unpaid balance (which accrues at the rate of 1.5% each month)

in the amount of $11,855.51.

3. Because of the failure of Respondent Committee or Brown,
as guarantor, to pay the Debt, Complainant filed suit against the
Respondent Committee and Brown in the Superior Court for the
District of Columbia on October 22, 1990. That litigation was
pending on January 31, 1991 and July 31, 1991, when Respondent
Committee's reports were due. Nonetheless, Respondent Committee's
report does not note that the Debt was in dispute, as required by
law, nor does it state that the Debt exceeded the amount which

Respondent acknowledges in its report.

4. The amount of the Debt as of December 31, 1990, was
$45,160.19, which included the principal amount of $37,500.00, an
expense amount of $4,022.97 and interest in the amount of
$3,637.32. Respondent Committee's 1990 "Year End" Federal Election
Commission report, filed 1in accordance with 2 U.S.C. §

434(a) (2) (B) (ii), purports to state a debt to the Eddie Mahe
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Company in the amount of $30,000.00. That report does not note
that the amount of the Debt reported then, is less than the amount
claimed by the Eddie Mahe Company. Neither does Respondent
Committee's report reserve any rights or disclaim its liability
thereunder, an option which the Commission's regulations would have
permitted. See 11 C.F.R. § 116.10(a):

A political committee shall report a disputed
debt in accordance with 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3
and 104.11 if the creditor has provided
something of value to the committee. Until
the dispute is resolved, the committee shall
disclose on the appropriate reports any
amounts paid to the creditor, any amount the
political committee admits it owes, and the
amount the creditor claims it is owed. The
political committee may also note on the
appropriate reports that the disclosure of the
disputed debt does not constitute an admission
of 1liability or waiver of any claims the
political committee may have against the
creditor. 'y « &

5. On Affiant's information and belief, Respondent has not
filed the 1991 "Mid-Year" report required by 2 U.S.C. §

434(a) (2)(B) (i). The amount of Respondent Committee's Debt as of

June 30, 1991, the cutoff date for that report, was $48,000.41.

6. The following Exhibits support Complainant's foregoing
statements:

a) Exhibit A - Statement of Account, dated December 1,
1990, showing the amount of debt claimed by the Eddie
Mahe Company as of December 31, 1990 to be $45,160.15;

b) Exhibit B - Statement of Account, dated May 1, 1990,
showing the amount of debt claimed by the Eddie Mahe
Company as of as of the cutoff date of June 30, 1991 to
be not less than $49,445.73.

c) Exhibit C - Copy of the Summary Sheets and Schedule
D of Respondent Committee's FEC Form 3, dated February
6, 1991 ("Year-End" report), which is a public record of
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the Federal Election Commission, showing a debt owed to
the Eddie Mahe Company in the amount of $30,000.00.

7. On Complainant's information and belief, Brown contributed
not less than $40,000.00 of his personal funds to the Respondent
Committee. The Respondent Committee has only reported
contributions from the candidate in the amount of $16,122.68,
leaving unreported contributions in an amount not 1less than
$23,873.32. (Exhibit D) 1In addition to all the foregoing, also
on Complainant's information and belief, Brown has made an further
contribution to the Respondent Committee of up to $20,000.00, in
the form of legal fees for work done on the Respondent Committee's
behalf. The Respondent Committee has not reported these
expenditures as contributions from the candidate, Brown. If Brown
has not actually paid the legal bills, then they constitute a debt
of the Respondent Committee, which it has failed to report. The
Respondent Committee did not report either of these contributions

from Mr. Brown, on Complainant's information and belief.

8. Brown, on Complainant's information and belief, has
acknowledged expressly and in writing that he made the contribution
of $40,000.00, of which the Respondent Committee has reported only
$16,126.68, as noted in the attachments. Specifically, Brown,
stated in the attached Exhibit C: "I contributed over $40,000 to
the campaign ..." In addition, Al Brown has expressly acknowledged
the existence of either an expenditure or a debt in the amount of
$20,000.00 for the 1legal fees incurred in 1litigation with

Complainant. In either case, these expenditures have not been




reported by Respondent Committee as required by 2 U.S.C. §

432 (e) (2), on Complainant's information and belief.

9. The following Exhibits support Complainant's forgoing
statements:

a) Exhibit D - Copy of letter which, on Complainant's
information and belief, was signed by Brown and sent to
Clayton Yeutter, Chairman of the Republican National
Committee. (Note admissions of contributions and legal
fees, in first paragraph, final page.)

10. The Commission ought therefore to find that the
Respondent Committee has violated the following provisions of the
Federal Election Campaign Act, as amended, and relevant regulations
promulgated thereunder:

a) 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(B)(i) - failing to file its 1991
"Mid-Year" report on or before July 31, 1991;

b) 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(2)(B) - failing to report
$23,873.32 in additional contributions from Brown:;
further, failure to report $20,000.00 of contributions
in kind for legal fees, or in the alternative, failure
to report the obligation to pay such fees, either in its
own right, or the obligation of Brown to pay them as the
Respondent Committee's agent, pursuant to 2 U.S.C.
§ 432(e)(2):
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c) 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8) - failure to report properly
the amount and nature of Respondent Committee's
outstanding debt to Complainant; failing to report the
additional amount of debt claimed by Complainant,
pursuant to 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3 and 104.11, in addition
to reporting the amount Respondent admits to owing, as
set forth in the regulations at 11 C.F.R. § 116.10(a);
failure to report the $20,000.00 obligation for legal
fees owed by the Respondent Committee, or by Al Brown,
as the Respondent Committee's agent pursuant to 2 U.S.C.
432(f), if neither the Respondent Committee nor Brown has
actually paid that debt, either.
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FURTHER THE COMPLAINANT BAITH NAUGHT.

A f/«,éu._ﬁ

Ladonna Y. Lee

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the said city and
district, came Ladonna Y. Lee, who, being cautioned and sworn,
made thls affidavit of Compla:mt on this ay of November, 1991.

i dillr”

Notary Public 9
My Commission expires Z?@ﬁ Z&; [ 975

c:\tuesday\complain.emj
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. . . THE EDDIE MAHE COMPANY

December 1, 1990

Al Brown for Congress
Post Office Box 2801
Louisville, Fentucky 40201
The Eddie Mahe Company

December Invoice

Outstanding --

Sign-on Fee 7.,500.00
February Fee 7,500.00
March Fee 7,500.00
April Fee 7,500.00
May Fee and Expenses 3,798.89

August Expenses 1,627.88
September Expensas 67.70
October Expenses 16.29
November Expenses i2-21

June Interest 450.00
July Interest 6C3.73
August Interest 612.78
September Interest 646.29
October Interest 657.11
November Interest T21
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TOTAL AMOUNT DUE AND PAYABLE $45.160.19

900 Second Streer. NE * Suire 200 » Washingron, DC 20002 » 202-842- 3100 » FAX 222.342.4a47




. . .THE EDI’IQMAHE CON[PARY

May 8, 1991

Al Brown

P.0. Box 2801
Louisville, KY 40201
The Eddie Mahe Company

May Invoice

Outstanding 1990 -

January Fee $ 7,500.00
February Fee 7,500.00
March Fee 7,500.00
April Fee 7,500.00
May Fee & Expenses 9,798.89

5

Total Fee & Expenses 6/30/90 $39,798.89
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June Interest on $39,798.89 596.98
July Interest on 40,395.87 605.93
August Interest on 41,001.80 615.02
September Interest on 43,244.70 648.67
October Interest on 43,893.57 658.40
November Interest on 44,551.937 668.27
December Interest on 45,220.24 678.30

b

Jg 40

Total Interest Due for 1990

£

7

Total Amount Outstanding for 1990 $45,898.54- -
Qutstanding 1991 -

January Interest on $45,898.54 688.47 $46,587.01
February Interest on 46,587.01 698.80 47 ,285.81
March Interest on 47,285.81 709.28 47 ,995.09
April Interest on 47,995.09 719.92 48,715.01
May Interest on 48,715.01 730.72 49,445.73

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE AND PAYABLE $49,445.73

900 Second Street, NE » Suire 200 » Washington, DC 20002 - 202-842-4100 « FAX 207-842-4442
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October 22, 139951

Mr. Clayton Yeutter

Chairman

Republican National Ccmmittee
310 First Street, S. E.
Washington, D.C. 2003

Dear Mr. Yeutter:

I am writing you this letter after great consternation and
reservation. As you are aware, in 1990, I ran for Congress in
Kentucky's Third Congressional District. We ran a very
aggressive campaign and in the spite of many set backs, we
cbtained slightly over 40% of the vote and raised over $400,000
with limited Washington suppeort; two fund raisers, a Secretary
Kemp event $28,000, a Jeannie Austin event 53,000 and lots of
help and advxce f-on Thelma Duggin. This was my first time
running for public office, although I had been active in the
Republican party for many vears.
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As a Black Republican, oy political life has been interesting and
intense. I even supported Richard Nixon over John F. Kennedy.

In 1589, I was extremely pleased whan Lae AtwWater strongly
encouraged me to run for cffice. He promised tiat if I would run
I would be one of two campaign fund raisers that he would
personally have to help us raise needed funds for a viable
campalign.

b

J 40

With my music background, having been involved in the ausic
indusctry with Motown and his background, we had great hopes of an
outstanding event. As a conservative Black Republican candidate,
a vasct majorzty of my experiences during the campaign were
positive, particularly the inspiration from Lee. After Lee's
“home gcing," Charlie Black stepped in near the general electicn
and was very helpful in a decperate time. I was given a forunm 2
talk about what conservatism really means Tt me.

2
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The true tenefits of cur campaign are just tceginning to
flourish. There 1is ntroversy now in the 3lack community.
Blacks are beqlnn-nq tc speak up and take different sices ¢on many
issues, i.e. quotas, affirmative action, forced bus;ng and
self-help programs. A growing number of ycung act

influential Blacks in our community are beginning to reques: me
to speak, many are openly saying that they <o not support
Democrat ideas and pecsitions any more
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Cne of the most negative things that hapvened during my
campaign was tha recantion of Eddie Mahe and LaDonna Las for our
political consultants. In the beginning, felt that Eddie Mahae
and LaDonna Lae had very serious negative feelings about Blacks
and they made many dercgatory statements. Thaey continued to
ancourage me not to menticn that I was a Black conservative
Republican among many other things. During the Primary Campaign,
I discovered that Eddie Mahe's associate, Lalonna Lee's husband's
partner had been retained by my Primary opponent. Today, Eddie
Mahe and I are involved in a law suit over fees. The issues are
basically two:

1. When Eddie Mahe was retained, he was retained by my
committaee on the basis of his arrogant, confident
portrayals that he was the "dream team"” and they could
raise more money than any of the "light weight”
consultants that we were interviewing. He stated that
his fees which would be $7500 a month would be raised
many times over by himself and his associates just from
PACs and with his contacts in Washington, D.C. alone.
Eddie Mahe's company did not raise any money for our
campaign. He continued to make excusas as to why the
PACs and others could not support us. EZxample, they
promised to raise between $200,000-300,000 for the Derby
event alone, if we could get tan tickets and five
suites. We complied and put together 100 PAC packets
that were sent to Eddie Mahe. He was not able to sell
one ticket nor one of the suites. I was highly
disappointed. We did not get cne penny in PAC
contributions as a result of his efforts. That, coupled
with LaDonna Lee's questionable loyalties, the constant
problems they caused when involved with our staff, and
the feelings of racial insensitivities caused us to losas
any falth, sc we withdrew from our relatienship.
Basically, ocur contract with him was that his fees would
be paid from mcnies which he would raise. He raised no
money, conseguently, in May we cancelled his services,
paid him for expenses feeling that was the extent of our
cbligations since he had raised nc mcney. Obviously,
this is a point of contention.

The second point of contention is EZddie Mahe is trying
to assert that I had personally guaranteed the contract
with him which was totally untrue. We have discovered
contracts that Mr. Mahe has with other candidates where
written perscnal guarantees were obtained. He is very
aware that he was retained by the ccmamittee and not by
me personally. The transmittal note with his contract
was addressed to my campaign manager and to myself with
her name being listed first, and he dealt very little
with me perscnally.
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My most major concern ars the defenses. Eddie Mahe had promisad
that he could deliver on many things that either could not or did
not materialize. Unfortunately, the trial will likely get 1lnto
the failures of the campaign and, I think, it will give negativae
information to anyone who was looking te have something negative
to say about the relationship between Black candidates and the
Republican party. I, in no way, want to consciocusly or
unconsciously give ammunition to the Liberals to misuse
statements made at the trial. Perscnally, and for your ears
only, I did feel during the campaign after the death of Chairman
Atwater that getting support from the RNC became very difficult
and the Congressional Committee became practically impossible.
Thelma Duggin, Jeannie Austin and I made numercus efforts to
obtain funds and other types of support, in many cases to no
avail. Ed Rollins of the Congressional Committee in the presence
of witnesses had promised that regardless of what the survey
numbers would show, even if it was as low as 2% they would back
me 100% financially. We even discussed how the money would be
best used for media or for mailings. Mr. Rollins became very
negative; after the Primary was not helpful at all, except a
kind word or two occasionally, but offered us none of the help
that he had praviously promised.

On one occasion, Rollins angrily stated to me that the reason
that they had given Ken Blackwell so much support was because he
had raised $200,000. I told Mr. Rellins if he would read our
financial reports, he would see that wa had also exceeded
$200,000 in contributions. If that were the criteria, I was
wondering why he did not offer us the same Xind of support. We
wJere never offered Presidential support. We were very thankful
that Jeannie Austin and Secretary Kemp did come on our behalf for
brief visits, as well as Thelma Duggin. The Vice President gave
us approximately twenty minutes including the ride from the
airport on a visit previocusly scheduled to Louisville.

I felt that the Republican party was reluctant and very difficult
during my campaign. In spite of all of these things, the lack of
support or lack of the level of support that I falt we deserved,
the constant antagonism czused by the consultants, we were still
able to raise over $400,000 in contributions without the
President, without a fund raiser from the Vice President and
anyone other than the officials mentioned above. We also managed
to garner over 40% of the vote in a first time political election
for me.

I am trying tc make this as brief as possible and I am sure you
recegnize that there are many issues I have not discussed that I
would be mecre than willing to discuss with you face-to-face. I
am again, considering the possibility of running; howeaver, I
would not consider the remote possibillity of running again, and
getting so little support from the Republican Party and the
Congressional Committee.
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My name recognition went from 3% to over 90%. I lost hundreds of
thousands of dollars in income to my business. I contributed
over $40,000 to the campaign and as you sea from the attached
bills from the law firm, this law suit has cost me upwards of
$20,000 to date, prior to the trial which, in fact, 1s scheduled
for the Monday preceding Thanksgiving.

In addition to the above, we still are carrying approximately
$9,000 in bills that were not paid during the ealection.

In spite of frustrations that I have had, I have continued to be
an outspoken, active Republican; cne of the most outspoken
non-elected Republicans in the state. As you can see from the
attached, I need some advice from you as to how to proceed. ?his
law suit is frivolous, I think it will be embarrassing to Eddie
Mahe and the Republican Party; it is incredibly costly to me and
at this point, truthfully, I cannot afford to continue without
great difficulty. These things came about solely because of my
candidacy and the fact that I relied on other key Republicans who
did not keep theair word.

I would appreciate any advice you can give me. Obviocusly, time
is of the essence. I would appreciate it if you would respond at
your earliest possible convenience. I recognize during these
times, it is a very difficult time, but I need your support. I
continue to be a positive active Republican who has suffered
through some unfortunate misunderstanding.

Sincerely,

V0

i

Al Brown

AB/ds
enclosures
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20463
November 21, 1991

Ladonna Y. Lee

The Eddie Mahe Company
Suite 200

900 Second Street, S.W.
Wwashington, DCc 20001

RE: MUR 3454

Dear Ms. Lee:

This letter acknowledges receipt on November 15, 1991, of
your complaintc alleging possible violations of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"), by Al
Brown for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton, as treasurer.
The respondents will be notified of this complaint within five

days.

You will be notified as soon as the Federal Election
Commission takes final action on your complaint. Should you
receive any additional information in this matter, please
forward it to the Office of the General Counsel. Such
information must be sworn to in the same manner as the original
complaint. We have numbered this matter MUR 3454, Please refer
to this number in all future correspondence. For your
information, we have attached a brief description of the
Commission’s procedures for handling complaints.

1f you have any questions, please contact Retha Dixon,
Docket Chief, at (202) 219-3410.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

S

Lois G. Lerner
Associate General Counsel

Enclosure
Procedures




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D C. 20461
November 21, 1991

Nancy Lampton, Treasurer

Al Brown for Congress Committee
P.0O. Box 2801

Louisville, KY 40201

MUR 3454

Dear Ms. Lampton:

The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
alleges that the Al Brown for Congress Committee ("Committee")
and you, as treasurer, may have violated the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"). A copy of the
complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 3454.
Please refer to this number in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opportunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against the Committee and
you, as treasurer, in this matter. Please submit any factual or
legal materials which you believe are relevant to the
Commission’s analysis of this matter. Where appropriate,
statements should be submitted under oath. Your response, which
should be addressed to the General Counsel’'s Office, must be
submitted within 15 days of receipt of this letter. If no
response is received within 15 days, the Commission may take
further action based on the available information.

This matter will remain confidential in accordance with
2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B) and § 437g(a)(12)(A) unless you notify
the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made
public. If you intend to be represented by counsel in this
matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed
form stating the name, address and telephone number of such
counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any
notifications and other communications from the Commission.




If you have any questions, please contact James Brown, the
attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 219-3690. For your
information, we have enclosed a brief description of the
Commission’s procedures for handling complaints.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

Lois Gi Lerner

Associate General Counsel

Enclosures

l. Complaint

2. Procedures

3. Designation of Counsel Statement

cc: J. Alphonso Brown
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December 19, 1991

Mr. James Brown

Associate General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
Washington D. C. 20463
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Subject: MUR 3454
Dear Mr. Brown:

Due to a myriad of circumstances, I have just now personally
received the above mentioned complaint filed by the Eddie Mahe
Company, specifically Ms. LaDonna Lee. The letter from your
office is dated November 21, and indicates that your office must
receive a response within fifteen days.

I am writing this letter to regquest a brief extension in order to
submit a response for your consideration. I strongly believe
that the response will clarify this matter and hopefully answer
any questions that you may have regarding the complaint filed by
the Eddie Mahe Company. Your consideration in this matter will
be greatly appreciated.

Thank you.
Sincerely,
Al Brown

AB/ds
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Mr. James Brown

Associate General Counsel
Federal Election Commission
Washington, D.C. 20463

9 KOLLJ 3
LERIERED]

0 € Hd 8- NVl Zb

|35hf.(...; ‘i H ]
NDISSIHHOL 20 J3

Re: MUR 3454
Dear Mr. Brown

I have received a copy of the complaint filed by the Eddie Mahe
Company against the Al Brown for Congress Committee.

First, I would like to assure you and the Federal Election
Commission that the Al Brown for Congress Committee has, at all
times, made every possible effort to abide by every law
applicable in a Congressional race. We have at no time,
consciously, violated any regulation. I believe the charges
filed by Ms. LaDonna Lee were filed for malicious purposes and,
hopefully, our responses will prove sufficient to the

Commission. Seemingly, there are three charges made by the Eddie
Mahe Company:

1. They allege that the Al Brown for Congress Committee is
indebted to the Eddie Mahe Company for $51,654.40. They
also claim that this debt was guaranteed by Al Brown,
personally.

The Eddie Mahe Company alleges that Al Brown contributed
in excess of $40,000 to the campaign and only reported
$16,126.60 to the FEC.

The Eddie Mahe Company alleges that Al Brown personally
paid $20,000 in legal fees defending himself against
charges which were filed against him personally and the
Al Brown for Congress Committee filed by the Eddie

Mahe Company.

The complaint alleges that all of the above situations were not
properly reported to the FEC. The facts are that the Eddie Mahe
Company filed a civil action agalnst Al Brown personally, and the
Al Brown for Congress Committee in the Superior Court in
Washington, D.C., Civil Action #90-12303.

A jury trial was held before Judge Salzman on November 26, 27,
and December 2. The jury ruled against the Eddie Mahe Company,
and LaDonna Lee and found that they had breached their contract
and had not performed the services as agreed. The jury found
that the Al Brown for Congress Committee was liable for only
$15,000. Unfortunately, because the suit was filed against Al




Brown personally, I was forced to retain counsel and pay for
those services. I was not aware at that time, nor am I aware at
this time that my report to the FEC should include those legal
fees.

I will be more than happy to amend the report to include legal
fees expended to defend myself in this suit. The Committee bank
account has had a zero balance for many months.

A copy of a newspaper article that appeared in the Louisville
Courier-Journal dated December 3, regarding the jury verdict is
attached.

The other item mentioned alleges that Al Brown personally
contributed over $20,00C that was not reported to the FEC. The
evidence is a letter addressed to Mr. Clayton Yeutter, chairman
of the Republican National Committee, and signed by Al Brown.
The letter included a statement that Al Brown spent over $40,000
in personal funds during the campaign.

In the early stages of the campaign, the Eddie Mahe Company
advised Al Brown that his foreign car should be put up on blocks,
and that he should purchase a car made domestically. They also
advised that this vehicle should be purchased with campaign
funds. I purchased a 1991 Ford Explorer that cost $24,000. I
decided that the purchase should be made by me personally for
many reasons; I used the vehicle during the campaign for campaign
purposes, as well as personally. I still own the vehicle and use
it for my personal business. If you determine that this wvehicle
should be included as a campaign contribution, I will be more
than happy to amend the report.

I strongly believe that the Eddie Mahe Company, specifically Ms.
LaDonna Lee, is using the FEC and this process as a harassment
tactic. We terminated their services for lack of performance in
accordance with the contract, and since then they have used every
means possible to harass Al Brown personally, and other
supporters.

If we can ba of any further assistance, you will find that we
will be cooperative. Thank you for your consideration in this
matter.

Sincerely,
N e

Al Brown
enclosure

AB/ds
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to the contract.

By MIKE BROWN
Staff Writer
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FEDERAIL ELECTION COMMISSION J
999 E Street, N.W

washington, D.C. 20463 SENS|TWE

FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT

COMPLAINANT:

RESPONDENTS:

RELEVANT STATUTES:

INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED:
FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED:

I. GENERATION OF MATTER

MUR 3454

DATE COMPLAINT RECEIVED

BY OGC November 15, 1991

DATE OF NOTIFICATION TO

RESPONDENTS November 21, 1991

STAFF MEMBERS George F. Rishel
Jeffrey D. Long

Ladonna Y. Lee
The Eddie Mahe Company

Al Brown for Congress Committee and
Nancy Lampton, as treasurer

2 U.S.C. § 434(b)

11 C.F.R. § 100.7(a)(1)(iii)
11 C.F.R. § 104.11

11 C.F.R. § 116.10
Disclosure Reports

None

This matter was initiated by a complaint filed by Ladonna Y.

Lee on behalf of The Eddie Mahe Company ("Mahe Company”) against

the Al Brown for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton, as

treasurer ("Brown Committee"). The complaint alleges that the

Brown Committee failed to report a disputed debt with the Mahe

Company, did not report all of the candidate’s in-kind

contributions to the committee or the payment of legal fees in

defending a suit brought by the Mahe Company on the debt, and did

not file a 1991 Mid-Year Report. On December 6, 1991, the Brown

Committee filed its 1991 Mid-Year Report. Attachment 2,




pages 19-23. On December 19, 1991, it responded to the
complaint. Attachment 1.

Al Brown was the Republican candidate for Congress in the

Third Congressional District of Kentucky in the 1990 general

election. He lost the election with 39.44 percent of the vote.
The Brown Committee was his principal campaign committee for that
election. Through December 31, 1990, the Brown Committee
reported total receipts of $331,836.08 and total disbursements of
$330,698.30 with ending cash on hand of $1,137.78 and debts owed
by the committee of $40,443.19, The amount of the debts owed
included a $30,000 debt owed to the Mahe Company. The 1991
Mid-Year Report disclosed total receipts of $4,380.20 and total
disbursements of $5,340.85 with ending cash on hand of $177.13
and debts owed by the committee of $56,879.14. The amount of
debts owed included a $48,000.14 debt owed to the Mahe Company
with $18,000.14 noted as incurred during the reporting period.

I1. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Disputed Debt

Commission regulations provide that a committee must report
disputed debts until the debt is resolved and paid. 11 C.F.R.

§ 116.10(a). This regulation took effect October 3, 1990.

The complaint contends that as of December 31, 1990, the
Brown Committee owed the Mahe Company a total of $45,160.19
(which included a principal of $37,500, an expense of $4,022.97,
and interest of $3,637.32), but reported only a $30,000 debt on
its 1990 Year End Report without noting any re2servation of rights

or disclaimer of liability. The complaint alleges that as of
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June 30, 1991, the amount of the debt owed to the Mahe Company

was $48,000.41.

In response, the candidate states that the Mahe Company filed

suit against him and the Brown Committee on the subject debt in
the Superior Court in Washington, D.C. Following a jury trial on
November 26 and 27 and December 2, the jury found that the Brown
Committee was liable for only $15,000 of the disputed debt and
that Al Brown personally was not liable on the debt. As noted,
the Brown Committee filed on December 6, 1991, its 1991 Mid-Year
Report to disclose the debt in the amount alleged in the
complaint. It did not note, however, that the debt was in
dispute or that it reserved its rights or disclaimed liability.
Thus, we recommend that the Commission find reason to believe the
Brown Committee violated 11 C.F.R. § 116.10(a). Given the
resolution of the matter in the court decision, the debt status
of the Brown Committee, and that Brown is no longer a candidate
for Congress, we further recommend that the Commission exercise
its prosecutorial discretion and take no further action on this
recommendation. See, e.g., MUR 3081 and MUR 3312.

B. Alleged In-Kind Contributions

The complaint next alleges that the Brown Committee failed to
report two types of in-kind contributions. First, it alleges
that in a letter to the Republican National Committee ("RNC"),
the candidate claims to have contributed $40,000 of his own funds
to his campaign, but the reports disclosed only $16,122.68 in
contributions from the candidate. Second, the complaint alleges

that Brown spent up to $20,000 in legal fees in his defense of




the Mahe Company’s lawsuit, but did not report it as an in-kind
contribution to his campaign.

Reports filed by the Brown Committee disclose contributions
from the candidate totaling $16,126.68 in 1990 plus a $5,800 loan
in 1989 of which $4,974.84 had been repaid by December 31, 1990.
In his response to the complaint, the candidate states:

In the early stages of the campaign, the Eddie Mahe

Company advised Al Brown that his foreign car should be

put up on blocks, and that he should purchase a car made

domestically. They also advised that this vehicle

should be purchased with campaign funds. I purchased a

1991 Ford Explorer that cost $24,000. I decided that

the purchase should be made by me personally for many

reasons; I used the vehicle during the campaign for

campaign purposes, as well as personally. 1If you

determine that this vehicle should be included as a

campaign contribution, I will be more than happy to

amend the report.

Thus, it appears that the remaining $24,000 the candidate
claimed he spent on the campaign was for the purchase of the Ford
Explorer.

In various advisory opinions, most recently in Advisory
Opinion 1992-12, the Commission has addressed the use of a
vehicle purchased with campaign funds. 1In these opinions, the
Commission has approved arrangements whereby the campaign would
be reimbursed by the candidate for the personal use of the
vehicle purchased by the campaign. To this extent, these
opinions are distinguishable from Brown'’s situation. The Brown
Committee did not purchase the Ford Explorer; the candidate
purchased it from his personal funds because he saw it as his

personal asset. In Advisory Opinion 1992-12 the Commission also

noted that once the candidate assumed the lease payments for the




vehicle from his campaign committee after the 1992 elections and

made it his personal vehicle, any subseguent "use" by the

candidate for a possible 1994 congressional campaign would "be

viewed as an in-kind contribution from him.” Accordingly, in
Brown'’'s situation, because the vehicle was used in part for
campaign activity, the Brown Committee should have reported as
in-kind contributions the candidate’s use of the Ford Explorer
for campaign purposes. The amount of the in-kind contribution
would be the usual and normal charge for the use of the vehicle
and would include the candidate’s actual out-of-pocket expenses
for the use of the vehicle or a reasonable per diem based on such
use. See Advisory Opinion 1984-8.

As noted, the Brown Committee reported $16,126.68 in in-kind
contributions from the candidate. The itemization of these
receipts indicates that several of them were for travel. See
Attachment 2 at pages 6 and 9. Therefore, we cannot determine at
this point whether the Brown Committee fully reported in-kind
contributions from the candidate related to the campaign use of
the Ford Explorer. We note, however, the allegation related to
the purchase of the vehicle.

With regard to the payment of legal fees to defend the suit
brought by the Mahe Company, the candidate states that because
the suit was filed against him personally as well as the
committee, he was forced to retain counsel and pay for those
services. He adds that he was not aware that he should report

the payment of legal fees as a contribution, but would be happy




il
to do so.1 He attached a news article regarding the outcome of
the suit.

We note that the candidate was named personally in the suit
and that the jury verdict found for him on the question of his
liability. Also, the news article suggests that the defense
apparently focused primarily on the candidate’s personal
liability. We do not believe that the candidate’s legal fees to
defend his personal liability in this suit need to be reported as
contributions to his committee. PFurthermore, we note that the
Brown Committee reported a $1,000 payment on February 28, 1991,
to a Washington law firm as a "retainer for law suit."

Therefore, we conclude that the Brown Committee did not
violate 2 U.5.C. § 434(b) by failing to report the candidate’s
purchase of the Ford Explorer or the candidate’s payment of legal
fees to defend his personal liability.

C. MNMid-Year Report Piling

The complaint further alleges that the Brown Committee had
failed to file its 1991 Mid-Year Report. As noted, following the
filing of this complaint, the Brown Committee did file such
report.

Therefore, we recommend that the Commission find reason to
believe the Brown Committee violated 2 U.5.C. § 434(a)(2)(B)(1i)

and take no further action on this recommendation.

1. 1In phone calls with staff of this Office in April 1992, the
candidate stated that he would make these amendments if
instructed to do so by the Commission.




RECOMMENDATIONS

Find reason to believe that Al Brown for Congress
Committee and Nancy Lampton, as treasurer, violated
2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(B)(i) and 11 C.F.R. § 116.10
but take no further action with respect to these
sections.

Find no reason to believe that Al Brown for
Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton, as treasurer,
violated 2 U.5.C. § 434(b).

Approve the appropriate letters.

Close the file.

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

Date

VWA e el

ois ? Lerner
Assocliate General Counsel

Attachments

1‘
2.

Response
Report Excerpts




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of

Al Brown for Congress Committee MUR 3454
and Nancy Lampton, as treasurer.

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, Secretary of the Federal Election

Commission, do hereby certify that on July 29, 1992, the
Commission decided by a vote of 6-0 to take the following

actions in MUR 3454:

1. Find reason to believe that Al Brown
for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton,
as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)
(2)(B)(i) and 11 C.F.R. § 116.10 but
take no further action with respect to
these sections.

Find no reason to believe that Al Brown

for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton,
as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b).

(Continued)




Federal Election Commission
Certification for MUR 3454
July 29, 1992

Approve the appropriate letters, as
recommended in the General Counsel’s
Report dated July 24, 1992.

Close the file.

Commissioners Aikens, Elliott, McDonald, McGarry, Potter
and Thomas voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:

Date; : jorie W. Emmons

Secre¥ary of the Commission

Received in the Secretariat: Thurs., July 23, 1992 3:26 p.m.
Circulated to the Commission: Fri., July 24, 1992 12:00 p.m.
Deadline for vote: Wed., July 29, 1992 4:00 p.m.

dr
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON. D C. 20463

August 6, 1992

Ladonna Y. Lee, President
The Eddie Mahe Company
Suite 200

900 Second Street, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20001

MUR 3454

Dear Ms. Lee:

This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the
Federal Election Commission on November 15, 1991, concerning the
Al Brown for Congress Committee.

Based on that complaint, on July 29, 1992, the Commission
found, on the basis of the information in the complaint and
information provided by the respondents, that there is no reason
to believe Al Brown for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton, as
treasurer, vioclated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b).

On that same date, the Commission found reason to believe
that Al Brown for Congress Committee and Nancy Lampton, as
treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(B)(i) and 11 C.F.R.

§ 116.10. However, after considering the circumstances of this
matter, the Commission also determined to take no further action
and closed its file.

This matter will become part of the public record within 30
days. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended,
allows a complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission’s
dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

If you have any questions, please contact me at (202)
219-3690.

Sincerely,

Jeffrey D. Long
Paralegal
Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D C. 20463

August 6, 1992

Nancy Lampton, Treasurer

Al Brown for Congress Committee
P.0. Box 2801

Louisville, Kentucky 40201

RE: MUR 3454
Al Brown for Congress Committee
and Nancy Lampton, as treasurer

Dear Ms. Lampton;

On November 12, 1991, the Federal Election Commission
notified the Al Brown for Congress Committee ("Committee") and
you, as treasurer, of a complaint alleging violations of certain
sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended
("the Act"). On July 29, 1992, the Commission found, on the basis
of the information in the complaint and information provided by
the Committee, that there is no reason to believe the Committee
and you as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b).

On that same date, the Commission also found reason to
believe that the Committee and you as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 434(a)(2)(B)(i) and 11 C.F.R. § 116.10. However, after
considering the circumstances of this matter, the Commission also
determined to take no further action and closed its file.

The Commission reminds you that failure to accurately report
disputed debts as set forth at 11 C.F.R. § 116.10 and failure to
timely file reports of receipts of disbursements are violations of
the Act. You should take immediate steps to insure that this
activity does not occur in the future.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(12) no
longer apply and this matter is now public. 1In addition, although
the complete file must be placed on the public record within 30
days, this could occur at any time following certification of the
Commission’s vote. If you wish to submit any factual or legal
materials to appear on the public record, please do so as soon as
possible. While the file may be placed on the public record
before receiving your additional materials, any permissible
submissions will be added to the public record upon receipt.




Nancy Lampton, Treasurer
Page 2

If you have any questions, please contact Jeffrey Long, the
staff member assigned to this matter, at (202) 219-3690.

Sincerely,

Joan D. Aikens
Chairman

Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report
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